
Northwest Regional Planning Commission – Development of a 
Northwest Vermont High Speed Broadband Feasibility Study and 
Business Plan 
Request for Proposals Questions and Answers 

 

1. Q. Please confirm that the study area for the purposes of this RFP are fixed to the boundaries of 
Franklin & Grand Isle County. 
 
A. Yes, the study area for this RFP is fixed to the boundaries of the study area, which 
encompasses all of Franklin and Grand Isle Counties with the exception of Alburgh and Isle 
Motte.  

 
2. Q. With regard to the asset inventory, please confirm that the desired scope is limited to desk 

research on assets based on Vermont Open Geodata Portal, FCC, ACS, and other public and 
proprietary datasets. Specifically, confirm this RFP is not looking for a survey vehicle or crew to 
perform field inspections or signal surveys. 
 
A. The desired scope is limited to desk research on assets available in public and proprietary 
datasets. The NRPC does not expect the consultant to conduct survey work such as field 
inspections or signal surveys as part of this inventory.  

 
3. Q. Are there other municipal ISPs the NRPC and NWCUD view as particularly relevant in wanting 

to evaluate their planning against. 
 
A. As stated in the mission of the NWCUD, the District’s goal, if feasible, is to develop an open-
access fiber network. As such, the NRPC and NWCUD see other municipal open-access fiber 
networks as particularly relevant to evaluate planning against. Examples of such networks 
include: UTOPIA Fiber, Ammon Fiber, Electric Power Board of Chattanooga, and Westminster 
Fiber Network (Ting).     
 

4. Q. The RFP states that the survey area is to be all of Franklin and Grand Isle counties and then 
states that in Phase 2 Business Plan the Construction Costs are to be evaluated and planned for 
each municipality. May we assume that at the stage of developing construction plans that the 
work may be limited to the 11 municipalities contained within the NWCUD as illustrated in 
Figure 1, or should the effort be increased to accommodate all municipalities within Franklin and 
Grand Isle counties? 
 
A. Construction plans should be developed for the 10 NWCUD municipalities within the service 
area. Additionally, construction plans should be developed for Swanton Village and Enosburg 
Falls, as the presence of a local utility company presents unique opportunities to partner in the 
development of a network. Other municipalities in the study area need not be considered for 
the development of construction plans unless including them is necessary for the feasibility of 
the network.  



While a member of the NWCUD, Alburgh is completing its own feasibility study and business 
plan, and therefore should not be considered for construction plans.  

 
5. Q. Has the NWCUD had any discussions to date with lending institutions? 

 
A. No, the NWCUD has not had any discussions with lending institutions to date.  
 

6. Q. Is the NWCUD aware of any existing franchise agreements for broadband providers currently 
serving the region? 
 
A. Comcast holds the cable franchise for the entirety of the study area. However, neither NRPC 
or NWCUD are aware of any franchise agreements specific to broadband within the region.  

 
7. Q. Will participation in this feasibility study in any way disqualify future participation in bidding 

in future implementation or materials RFPs for this area? 
 
A. Participation in this feasibility study will not disqualify future participation in bidding for 
implementation or material RFPs for this area. However, equally, participation in this feasibility 
study will not imply any guarantee of participation in implementation projects.  
 

8. Q. Is there an expected budget range for this phase? 
 
A. The expected budget is broken down into two components. For the Feasibility Study, the 
expected budget is $27,850. Contingent upon a study that returns a positive finding of 
feasibility, the expected budget for the business plan phase is also $27,850.  

 
9. Q. What is the budget for the Feasibility Study and for the Business Plan? 

A. See above, the expected budget is $27,850 per phase.  
 

10. Q. Are geo-referenced pole inventories (or GIS pole maps) available for VEC, Enosburg Electric 
and Swanton Electric poles? 
 
A. All electric utilities have data on locations of poles, however only GMP currently provides this 
information publicly. VEC has indicated that they are willing to provide their data on poles to the 
NWCUD if a non-disclosure agreement is in place. The NRPC and NWCUD will work with 
Enosburg Electric and Swanton Electric to obtain data on the locations of their poles.  
    

11. Q. Would the District consider fixed wireless technology in order to serve the most remote and 
uneconomic customers? 
 
A. The NWCUD would consider the use of fixed wireless technology where site conditions 
require. The strong preference of the NWCUD is towards implementing fiber technology. 

 



12. Q. Some parts of the proposed study area have cable service, including cable modem service, 
while others do not, though they may have DSL. Will the study prioritize non-cable areas or 
areas that do not have 25/3 Mbps service? 
 
A. Yes, to the greatest extent possible NRPC and the NWCUD would like the study to prioritize 
expanding service to areas not currently served by 25/3 Mbps service. However, the NRPC and 
NWCUD recognize that it is important for any study to develop an economically feasible plan. 
Therefore, unserved areas should be prioritized only to the extent that would not make the 
project not feasible.  

 
13. Q. Please clarify the expected level of detail in the deliverables in "High-Level Engineering and 

Design Plans" and the construction cost estimates. Does this anticipate a shovel-ready detailed 
engineering design including where all components in the outside plant are located, or a less-
specific budgetary design that indicates the approximate location of the fiber routes and 
estimated cost but requires final engineering at the pole level? 
 
A. The high engineering and design plans need to be detailed enough that a reasonable cost 
estimate can be developed and the business plan is actionable for the purposes of obtaining 
loans from financial institutions.  Given the expected budget and large study area, the NRPC 
does not anticipate that the “High Level Engineering and Design Plans” and construction costs 
estimates will be a shovel-ready detailed engineering design. Work tasks such as pole surveys 
and detailed design and engineering at the pole level are not included on the scope of this 
project.  

 
14. Q. Does a response have to include all parts of the RFP, or can it exclude portions? 

 
A. A response should address all of the parts of the RFP in the format requested in Section III.  

 
15. Q. Will billing for the project be done on a time and materials - not to exceed basis, or can it be 

on a fixed milestone and deliverable basis?  The cost proposal is specified as itemizing both the 
hours and cost for each team member.  If billing is on a T&M basis, will the billable hours for 
each team member be limited to the itemized estimate, or will the respondent have flexibility to 
reallocate the labor budget? 
 
A. Billing for the project will be on a regular basis based on deliverables achieved in that period, 
not on a time and materials basis. The cost proposed by the selected consultant in their bid will 
serve as the maximum total fee for services.  
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